
Contract Committee Meeting
February 9, 2021 5:00 PM
Central Services Board Room

1. Call to Order - Mrs. Teresa Boston
2. Moment of Silence / Pledge of Allegiance - Mrs. Teresa Boston
3. Approval of Committee Minutes
4. Elect a Committee Chairman
5. Sidekick Therapy Partners Contract Agreement
6. Therapy Works, LLC Contract
7. Occupational Therapy Services Contract
8. Other Discussion
9. Adjournment



Contract Committee Meeting 
September 29, 2020  
Central Services Board Room 
 
The Contract Committee met on Tuesday, September 29, 2020, in the Central Services Board Room where Mrs. 
Teresa Boston called the meeting to order at the approximate hour of 4:39 p.m. She welcomed everyone to the 
meeting and appreciated everyone for attending. 
 
PRESENT: 
Mrs. Teresa Boston, District 8   Mr. Jim Inman, District 1  
Mrs. Stace Karge, District 9    Mrs. Anita Hale, District 4      
Dr. Ina Maxwell, Director of Schools   Mrs. Kim Bray, H.R. Supervisor     
Mr. Earl Patton, Attorney    Vickie Baucum, Small Business Staffing 
 
 
ABSENT: Robert Safdie, District 2 
 

1. Call to Order – Mrs. Teresa Boston 
 

2. Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance – Mrs. Teresa Boston 
 

3. Approval of minutes – Safdie made a motion to approve the minutes. 
 
VOICE VOTE: Karge (mover-yes) 

  Boston (seconder-yes) 
   All Ayes  
 
        MOTION: Carried Unanimously  
 
 

 
4. General Staffing Agreement 

Boston introduced the contract. Boston continued, “In regard to the contract, it is definitely in Small Biz 
Staffing’s favor. I would like to know where this contract generated from. Mrs. Bray, can you tell me 
how we got that?” Bray responded, “A few weeks ago Mr. Inman came in and he approached me about 
the possibility of having Mrs. Baucum from Small Biz Staffing help us recruit drivers. I reached out to 
her and we had some discussion, and this is the contract she provided us to help us recruit bus drivers 
because we have a difficult time.  She has a pool of people to pull from and it may be a different pool 
than we have been able to access. It was just an idea and he asked me to pursue it.  This is basically the 
result of that.”  Boston asked, “What do we pay our normal bus drivers as a general rule?” Bray 
answered, “It is a range they start at $40.00 and they can top out at $70.00, based on how long they’ve 
been here. We pay by the day. We say a bus driver day is 4 hours. She came up with an average rate she 
would pay per hour. Then she puts her martin on top of that.  Mrs. Baucum is in the room if you have 
questions for her.” Boston continued, “Earl, have you reviewed this contract?” Patton responded, “I 
have!” Boston asked, “What is your opinion, in regard to this contract?”  Patton answered, “Well as you 
know Mrs. Boston that is a broad question.” Boston continued, “There again, we are set by the state with 
the salary. We have a salary scale we have to submit to the state, and it has to be approved. Where 
would we fall legally in entering a contract that goes outside that salary scale?”  Patton answered, 
“There are some adjustments that we would probably have to make, but I think those can legally be 
made.” Bray said, “It is no different as with PT and OT. We are contracting for services. She is going to 
provide employees and she will send an invoice and we are going to pay it. That’s what it amounts to. 
She will collect all the taxes and will be a third-party vendor to us. Basically, that is what she is going to 



do is recruit and we will be able to try these folks out. At the end of the term we will be able to hire them 
permanently, if not we will send them on their way, no harm no foul. We pay no benefits for them it is 
just strictly what we would pay to her for her services and her recruiting. She will pay for the drug tests 
and the background check. She will furnish their insurance if they work more than 30 hours a week, 
which they will not. I’m just hoping she has a large pool of folks. What we have been able to go 
through, we have exhausted our means, and this was just another option” Boston asked, “How many bus 
drivers are we short at this time?” Bray answered, “Probably about eleven.”  Karge said, “My questions 
if I may Ms. Boston.” Boston replied, “Sure.” Karge continued, “My question is two-fold. One is in 
liability. Heaven forbid something happens and a contract employee, bus driver gets in an accident and 
looks like you’re holding us… we’re not responsible.  It’s going to fall back on you guys and do you 
have enough liability? I guess Earl what do you think? It seems like a sketchy, grayish area.”  Baucum 
responded, “We do this type of relationship all the time for lots of other companies. The workers 
compensation and responsible for the employee is mine, so if they are injured at work in an accident 
then workers compensation and everything in relation to the employee is my responsibility. However the 
client has responsibility to make sure the employee understands the equipment they have to operate 
under and that they are trained to the proper safety rules that they expect. It is truly a partnership. I can’t 
take on your liability insurance however, I am probably insured enough to meet whatever your 
perimeters would need. If I need to raise my insurance, then I can do that.”  Karge stated, “My question 
is heaven forbid, if students get hurt, then, yes I understand your workers comp is going to cover the 
driver, but now we have students and parents involved. Where does that align? Maybe that is a question 
for you Mr. Patton.” Patton responded, “Well you still have to a potential liability.” Karge said, “But, we 
don’t have the oversite to train them, you’re training them.” Patton and Baucum said no! Karge said, “So 
we are training them? You’re just recruiting?” Patton stated, “From a liability standpoint. It’s not really 
not much different … Karge said, “But you’re doing the background checks?” Baucum answered yes. 
We will check to see whatever your background check requirement is.” Karge asked, “Do you do this 
for other schools?” Baucum answered, “No. we are only in Cumberland County.” Karge asked, “Do you 
know of any other school districts that are using these kinds of services?” Bray responded, “Some 
school districts contract their whole staff.” Karge said, “I think that is what Chattanooga did and then 
they had that accident and it became a big mess.” Bray said, “There are districts that use a completely 
contracted bus service. I will use this more as a recruiting tool to let us bring some people in.  We will 
train them. We are not going to turn them loose on the bus unless they are competent to do that.  Train 
them and put them on the bus.” Karge asked, “My next question what does that as far as the bonus 
structure we set up because they are not coming through us for recruitment. Would they no longer be 
eligible for the bonuses?” Bray responded, “Not until they are hired.” Karge asked, “So are we still 
going to give them a bonus for being hired? I guess it would be the safety bonus.” Bray said, “They 
would not receive a signing bonus.” Boston asked, “If we recruit these and they are through this 
company contracted. Are these drivers authorized under our insurance? Could we get them authorized 
under our insurance?” Bray responded, “I believe they could because like I said there are other districts 
who use the a very similar system. Their drivers don’t work for the school system, they are contracted.”  
Karge asked, “How much are our drivers getting paid?” Bray answered, “The scale starts at $40.00.” 
Karge asked, “How many hours are they working?” Bray responded, “4” Karge said, That is $10.00 per 
hour.  Then they could leave us and go and get $5.00 more,” Bray responded, “They would lose their 
insurance and their accumulated sick days.” Karge said, “But they could get the insurance there.”  
Baucum said, “If you are only working 20 hours a week you would not qualify for my insurance.” 
Boston asked, “So the fee for Small Biz resource is $6.70 per hour per driver. Is that correct?” Bray 
answered, “The bill rate is $21.75.” Bray said, “Then you are going to pay them $15.00 per hour?” Bray 
confirmed. Boston asked, “Where would this additional money come from?” Bray answered, “It would 
just be out of the driver line.” Inman asked, “I would assume we have in the budget for enough bus 
drivers to include the eleven we are short. I would assume that would be where we would take the 
money from.” Boston said, “I think the contract committee would look at the contract and then if we 
approve it we would send it to the budget committee to guestimate where the money would come from. I 
think it would have to go to budget after our committee before it went to the whole board. To see exactly 



how much money we’re talking about. I don’t suppose we know how much money we are talking about 
until we see how many drivers we can pull from this. Ms. Baucum, how comfortable are you that you 
can find us some drivers?” Baucum responded, “On the first search of our database we had over 350 
CDL drivers. We interview over 15 people every day. I’m sure I’m advertising more heavily. We are at 
job fairs. We are recruiting all the time.  I’m sure my recruiting efforts will surplus what the bus garage 
is doing. I’m sure we can find 4 to 5 with in the next few months. Boston asked Karge if she had any 
further questions or thoughts? Karge responded, “I’m going to put Mr. Patton on the spot. What are your 
thoughts? What kind of liability does that put us under, or do you think there is none?”  Patton 
responded., “I am not concerned about liability in this situation. Your big concern is that you have a bus 
driver shortage. That can cause more problems than anything else. I think from my perspective it alludes 
to the fact that contract may not be favorable in some spots for board. But in the situation where you’ve 
got a serious driver shortage and which we’ve have had for some time. I do see that is as a potential fix 
for that problem. From that standpoint it is probably worth the risk of doing it.” Boston made a motion 
to approve this contract on Mr. Patton’s approval and protection of the board and send it to the budget 
committee to determine where the money come from and how much money are we talking about. I have 
a tendency to agree with Mr. Patton, we do have such a shortage and we’ve tried everything else.  
 

VOICE VOTE: Boston (mover-yes) 
  Karge (seconder-yes) 
   All Ayes  
 
        MOTION: Carried Unanimously  

 
 

5. Other Discussion 
 

6. Adjournment – 
VOICE VOTE:  Karge (mover-yes) 
    Safdie (seconder-yes 
 

VOICE VOTE: All Ayes 
MOTION:          Carried Unanimously 
(The meeting was adjourned at the approximate hour of 4:50) 
 

 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Dr. Ina Maxwell 
Director of Schools 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Mrs. Teresa Boston 
Chairman of the Contract Committee 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Jane Franklin 



Executive Assistant for the Director of Schools and BOE 
 




























	Agenda
	1. Call to Order - Mrs. Teresa Boston
	2. Moment of Silence / Pledge of Allegiance - Mrs. Teresa Boston
	3. Approval of Committee Minutes
	Contract Committee Meeting Minutes 09.29.20

	4. Elect a Committee Chairman
	5. Sidekick Therapy Partners Contract Agreement
	Sidekick Therapy Partners Contractural Agreement

	6. Therapy Works, LLC Contract
	Therapy Works, LLC Contract

	7. Occupational Therapy Services Contract
	Occupational Therapy Services Contract

	8. Other Discussion
	9. Adjournment

